
Rutland County Council                  
Catmose, Oakham, Rutland, LE15 6HP.
Telephone 01572 722577 Facsimile 01572 758307 DX28340 Oakham

      

Ladies and Gentlemen,

A meeting of the DEVELOPMENT CONTROL AND LICENSING COMMITTEE will 
be held in the Council Chamber, Catmose, Oakham, Rutland, LE15 6HP on 
Tuesday, 16th June, 2015 commencing at 6.00 pm when it is hoped you will be 
able to attend.

Yours faithfully

Helen Briggs
Chief Executive

Recording of Council Meetings: Any member of the public may film, audio-record, 
take photographs and use social media to report the proceedings of any meeting that 
is open to the public. A protocol on this facility is available at 
www.rutland.gov.uk/haveyoursay

A G E N D A
APOLOGIES

1. MINUTES

To confirm the minutes of the Development Control and Licensing Committee 
held on 31 March 2015.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS

In accordance with the Regulations, Members are invited to declare any 
disclosable interests under the Code of Conduct and the nature of those 
interests in respect of items on this Agenda and/or indicate if Section 106 of 
the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.

3. PETITIONS, DEPUTATIONS AND QUESTIONS

To receive any petitions, deputations and questions from Members of the Public in 
accordance with the provisions of Procedure Rules.

The total time allowed for this item shall be 30 minutes.  Petitions, deputations and 
questions shall be dealt with in the order in which they are received.  Questions may 
also be submitted at short notice by giving a written copy to the Democratic Services 
Officer 15 minutes before the start of the meeting.

Public Document Pack

http://www.rutland.gov.uk/haveyoursay


The total time allowed for questions at short notice is 15 minutes out of the total time 
of 30 minutes.  Any petitions, deputations and questions that have been submitted 
with prior formal notice will take precedence over questions submitted at short notice.  
Any questions that are not considered within the time limit shall receive a written 
response after the meeting and be the subject of a report to the next meeting.

4. DEPUTATIONS RELATING TO PLANNING APPLICATIONS
To receive any deputations from members of the public in accordance with 
the provisions of Procedure Rule 94(4).

There will be no limit on the total number of deputations to be received but no 
more than two deputations will be permitted in respect of each planning 
application one of which, if required, will be from a statutory consultee.

Deputations which relate to a planning application included on the agenda for 
this meeting will be deferred until that application is considered by Members.

Following the deputation, the applicant or his agent will have a right of reply, 
the maximum time for which will be three minutes. Members will then have the 
opportunity to question the deputee and if a response has been made, the 
applicant or agent, for a maximum of four minutes.

5. REPORT NO. 100 - 2015 ENFORCEMENT REPORT - HOME FARM, 3 
WATER LANE, ASHWELL, RUTLAND 
To receive Report No.100/2015 from the Director for Places (Environment, Planning 
and Transport)
(Pages 1 - 6)

6. REPORT NO. 104 - 2015 ENFORCEMENT REPORT - STOUP COTTAGE, 
11 ASHWELL ROAD, WHISSENDINE, RUTLAND 
To receive Report No. 104/2015 from the Director for Places (Environment, Planning 
and Transport)
(Pages 7 - 12)

7. REPORT NO. 103 - 2015 APPLICATION 2014/0962/FUL - USE OF LAND 
AS A RESIDENTIAL CARAVAN SITE RANKSBOROUGH HALL, 
RANKSBOROUGH DRIVE, LANGHAM 
To receive Report No. 103/2015 from the Director for Places (Environment, Planning 
and Transport)
(Pages 13 - 28)

8. REPORT NO. 101 - 2015 PLANNING APPLICATIONS 
To receive Report No. 101/2015 from the Director for Places (Environment, Planning 
and Transport)
(Pages 29 - 40)

9. REPORT NO. 102 - 2015 APPEALS 
To receive Report No. 102/2015 from the Director for Places (Environment, Planning 
and Transport)



(Pages 41 - 42)

10. ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS

To consider any other urgent business approved in writing by the Chief Executive 
and Chairman of the Committee.

---oOo---

DISTRIBUTION
MEMBERS OF THE DEVELOPMENT CONTROL AND LICENSING COMMITTEE:

Mr E Baines (Chairman)

Mr J Lammie (Vice-Chair)

Mr G Conde Mr W Cross
Mr J Dale Mr T King
Mr A Mann Mr T Mathias
Mr M Oxley Mr C Parsons
Mr A Stewart Mr D Wilby

OTHER MEMBERS FOR INFORMATION



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BLANK PAGE 

1

Agenda Item 1



3
2

rpedley
Typewritten Text

rpedley_1
Typewritten Text

rpedley_2
Typewritten Text

rpedley_3
Typewritten Text

rpedley_4
Typewritten Text

rpedley_5
Typewritten Text

rpedley_6
Typewritten Text

rpedley_7
Typewritten Text

rpedley_8
Typewritten Text

rpedley_9
Typewritten Text

rpedley_10
Typewritten Text
Enforcement Map, Home Farm, 3 Water Lane, Ashwell



 
REPORT NO: 100/2015 

 

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL AND LICENSING 
COMMITTEE 

 
16th June 2015 

 

 ENFORCEMENT REPORT 
 

Home Farm, 3 Water Lane, Ashwell, Rutland 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR FOR PLACES (ENVIRONMENT, PLANNING AND 
TRANSPORT) 

 
 

STRATEGIC AIM: CREATING A SUSTAINED ENVIRONMENT 
 

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 For members to decide what action should be taken in relation to alleged 

unauthorised works to a Grade II listed building involving the painting of the external 
surfaces of 3 stone mullions on the north elevation of the property without listed 
building consent.   
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 That members take NO ACTION. 

 
3.  DETAILS OF THE REPORT 

 
3.1 The property which is within the Ashwell Conservation Area was originally listed in 

February 1984 with an updated listing completed in October 1996. 
 

3.2 Photographs taken in 1983 appear to show that the stone mullions on the north 
elevation were painted at the time of the original listing. It is alleged that the paint 
was removed from the all the stone mullions internal and external finishes sometime 
between 1987 and 1994 as part of listed building consent for the renovation and 
alterations to the dwelling under reference no 87/0356/9. However, there are no 
photographs showing the external finishes of the north elevation mullions having 
been cleaned of paint and the listed building consent does not include in the 
description of works the removal of paint from the external mullions of the north 
elevation.   
    

3.3 Following a complaint received on 26/2/15, a site visit carried out on 6/3/15 
confirmed that the only stone mullion surfaces painted were the external surfaces of 
the 3 on the north elevation. The current owners confirmed that they had repainted 
the stone mullions in 2014 from white to the pale green colour that matched the 
external finish on the timber window frames of the property.    
  

3.4 Listed building consent is not necessarily required for repainting an existing painted 
surface; it depends on the precise circumstances.  There are no hard and fast rules 
with listed buildings and each case has to be assessed individually as to whether 
the works affect its character.   It would appear that at the time of listing the mullions 
were painted but we cannot be certain. If the mullions had been cleaned of paint 
then consent would have been required for the removal of the paint.  We have no 
record of such consent as the 1987 consent is unclear on this point.  The 4

3



subsequent painting of these mullions may have needed consent but we cannot be 
sure as it is now unclear, especially in view of the elapse of time. We cannot be sure 
if there was a breach and if so who is responsible for it. 
 

3.5 It is a criminal offence under Section 9 (1) of the Planning (Listed Building and 
Conservation Areas) Act 1990 (as amended) to carry out works to a listed building 
without consent. In order to bring about a successful prosecution it must be proven 
‘beyond reasonable doubt’ that an offence has occurred and who was responsible. 
The only evidence we have of a possible offence is a statement that the stone 
mullions were cleaned of paint and then painted, it is not clear if and when the 
mullions were painted and who carried out the work as the current owners have 
advised that the mullions were already painted when they purchased the property in 
2007 and photographs taken at the time indicate that this was the case.  
 

3.6 It is therefore one person’s word against another and given the lack of evidence the 
serving of a Listed Building Enforcement Notice to require the current owners to 
remove the paint from the mullions on the north elevation, will require proof that on 
the balance of probabilities unauthorised works have taken place. This course of 
action could lead to a successful appeal due to the lack of evidence. It is unfortunate 
that if the alleged works took place that the complainant did not contact the Council 
at the time.  The elapse of time has added to the uncertainty. 
 

3.7 The removal of the paint could damage the stonework unless carefully undertaken. 
It is not clear if the mullions were cleaned of paint and who repainted them and 
when.  
 

3.8 Members will be aware that taking enforcement action is discretionary and not 
mandatory.  There are powers available to serve a listed building enforcement 
notice or to initiate a prosecution. Due to the considerable uncertainty that surrounds 
this case as set out in the report it is not recommended that action is taken.  Advice 
has been taken from the Council’s legal advisors and they concur that further action 
would not be advisable. 
 

4. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

4.1 Under Section 38 of The Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 
1990 (as amended), the Council may serve a Listed Building Enforcement Notice if 
Members are satisfied that: 

 
(a) There has been a breach of Listed Building Control, and 
(b) It is expedient to issue the Notice having regard to the effect of the works on 

the character of the building as one of special archaeological or historic 
interest. 

4.2 Failure to comply with a Notice if served would result in the Council having the 
option to prosecute the landowner in the Magistrates Court.  However, the interested 
parties may appeal to the Secretary of State for Communities and Local 
Government against the issue of the Enforcement Notice if they so wish. 

 
 

5. RISK MANAGEMENT  
 

RISK IMPACT 
COMMENTS 

Time 
Low There is no time limit for taking action against a breach of 

listed building control. 
Viability Low There are no viability issues 
Finance High It is not possible to quantify the costs.  There are 

potential costs from any enforcement appeal and the 5
4



costs of legal advice on any prosecution. 
Profile Medium There is one complainant and the Council is not aware of 

concern from others.  The case may however generate 
interest in the local press. 

Equality 
and 
Diversity 

Low EIA is not required. 
 
  

 
 

 
 
 
Background Papers Report Author 
Background File Ref: 2015/0013/CMP Mr Mark Longhurst 

Tel: 01572 758262 
Email: mlonghurst@rutland.gov.uk  

 
 

A Large Print or Braille Version of this Report is available 
upon request – Contact 01572 722577 
 

6
5



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BLANK PAGE 

7

Agenda Item 2



7
8

rpedley_11
Typewritten Text
Enforcement Map, Stoup Cottage, 11 Ashwell Road, Whissendine



 
REPORT NO: 104/2015 

 

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL AND LICENSING 
COMMITTEE 

 
16th June 2015 

 

 ENFORCEMENT REPORT 
 

Stoup Cottage, 11 Ashwell Road, Whissendine, Rutland 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR FOR PLACES (ENVIRONMENT, PLANNING AND 
TRANSPORT) 

 
 

STRATEGIC AIM: CREATING A SUSTAINED ENVIRONMENT 
 

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 For members to decide what action should be taken in relation to alleged 

unauthorised works to a Grade II listed building involving the painting of the external 
surface of a stone mullion without listed building consent.   
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 That members take NO ACTION. 

 
3.  DETAILS OF THE REPORT 

 
3.1 The stone mullion is located on the north elevation of the property facing onto 

Ashwell Road. It is a Grade II listed building which was listed in February 1984.  
 

3.2 It has been alleged that the stone mullion was painted with limewash but has now 
been painted with an inappropriate type of modern paint. Limewash is a simple type 
of matt paint made from lime and water which is considerably more breathable than 
most modern paints. It provides a soft non uniform finish and is particularly suitable 
for stonework.  A black and white photograph taken in1983 appears to show that the 
stone mullion was painted at the time of the original listing as the finish looks to be 
bright and uniform but it is not certain what type of finish it was. Another photograph 
taken in 2005 shows the mullions painted in a bright white finish matching the 
wooden window frames and indeed street view records show that from 2009 the 
mullion was painted with a bright uniform finish rather than a limewashed finish.  
    

3.3 A site visit was carried out on 18/3/15 when the current owners advised that the 
stone mullion was not limewashed but was painted at the time they purchased the 
property. They had repainted the exterior of the property including the windows and 
the stone mullion several months prior to our visit as part of their cyclical 
maintenance. They have owned the property for at least 17 years and this was the 
third occasion the exterior had been repainted although previously they had kept to 
the original white and on this latest occasion they had changed the colour of the 
window frames to a pale grey. The type of paint used was a modern microporous 
flexible gloss.  
 

3.4 Listed building consent is not necessarily required for repainting an existing painted 
surface; it depends on the precise circumstances.  There are no hard and fast rules 
with listed buildings and each case has to be assessed individually as to whether 8

9



the works affect its character. The Conservation Officer is satisfied that the change 
of colour does not materially affect the external appearance of the building and 
therefore listed building consent would not have been required if the mullion had 
already been painted. However, if the mullion had been limewashed at the time of 
the listing then this type of modern paint would not have been an acceptable finish. 

 
3.5 It is a criminal offence under Section 9 (1) of the Planning (Listed Building and 

Conservation Areas) Act 1990 (as amended) to carry out works to a listed building 
without consent. In order to bring about a successful prosecution it must be proven 
‘beyond reasonable doubt’ that an offence has occurred, when it has occurred and 
who was responsible. The only evidence we have of a possible offence is a 
statement that the stone mullion was until recently limewashed and is now painted 
with an unsuitable finish. The current owners have advised that the mullion was 
already painted when they purchased the property in 1998, it is therefore unclear 
when the surface was originally painted and by whom. It is one person’s word 
against another and given the lack of evidence the Council’s legal advisors have 
advised that there is not sufficient evidence to provide a realistic prospect of 
conviction.   

 
3.6 As an alternative to prosecution the council could serve a Listed Building 

Enforcement Notice requiring the current owners to remove the paint from the 
mullions on the north elevation.  Service of a valid notice will require proof that on 
the balance of probabilities unauthorised works have taken place. This course of 
action could lead to a successful appeal due to the lack of evidence and the removal 
of the paint could damage the stonework unless carefully undertaken. It is 
unfortunate that the complainant did not contact the Council at the time the works 
were being undertaken as the existing finish could have been assessed. 
 

3.7 Members will be aware that taking enforcement action is discretionary and not 
mandatory.  Due to the considerable uncertainty that surrounds this case as set out 
in the report it is not recommended that action is taken.  Advice has been taken from 
the Council’s legal advisors and they concur that further action would not be 
advisable due to lack of evidence.  
 
 

4. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

4.1 Under Section 38 of The Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 
1990 (as amended), the Council may serve a Listed Building Enforcement Notice if 
Members are satisfied that: 

 
(a) There has been a breach of Listed Building Control, and 
(b) It is expedient to issue the Notice having regard to the effect of the works on 

the character of the building as one of special archaeological or historic 
interest. 

4.2 Failure to comply with a Notice if served would result in the Council having the 
option to prosecute the landowner in the Magistrates Court.  However, the interested 
parties may appeal to the Secretary of State for Communities and Local 
Government against the issue of the Enforcement Notice if they so wish. 

 
 

5. RISK MANAGEMENT  
 

RISK IMPACT 
COMMENTS 

Time 
Low There is no time limit for taking action against a breach of 

listed building control. 
Viability Low There are no viability issues 9

10



Finance High It is not possible to quantify the costs.  There are 
potential costs from any enforcement appeal and the 
costs of legal advice on any prosecution. 

Profile Medium There is one complainant and the Council is not aware of 
concern from others.  The case may however generate 
interest in the local press. 

Equality 
and 
Diversity 

Low EIA is not required. 
 
  

 
 

 
 
 
Background Papers Report Author 
Background File Ref: 2015/0015/CMP Mr Mark Longhurst 

Tel: 01572 758262 
Email: mlonghurst@rutland.gov.uk  

 
 

A Large Print or Braille Version of this Report is available 
upon request – Contact 01572 722577 
 

10
11



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BLANK PAGE 

13

Agenda Item 3



 

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 900m

LB

Track

33

40 34

46

30

32

OVERTON ROAD

OVERTON ROAD

OVERTON ROAD

OVERTON ROAD

OVERTON ROAD

OVERTON ROAD

OVERTON ROAD

OVERTON ROAD

OVERTON ROAD

9

22

COLD
COLD
COLD
COLD
COLD
COLD
COLD
COLD
COLD

128.1m

1

Sub Sta

3

Parva Lodge

Path

17a

21

32a

Pum
p

32

30

22

5

3

FA
IR

F
IE

LD
 C

L
O

S
E

FA
IR

FIE
LD

 C
LO

S
E

FA
IR

FIE
LD

 C
LO

S
E

FA
IR

F
IE

LD
 C

L
O

S
E

FA
IR

FIE
LD

 C
LO

S
E

FA
IR

F
IE

LD
 C

L
O

S
E

FA
IR

FIE
LD

 C
LO

S
E

FA
IR

FIE
LD

 C
LO

S
E

FA
IR

FIE
LD

 C
LO

S
E

1

2

H
ouse

S
hearw

ater

El

GP

15

21

Brambling House

Fieldfare

Hayes Close

Well

1

Hayes Farm

3

HAINSW
O

RTH CLO
SE

HA
INSW

O
RTH CLOSE

HAINSW
O

RTH CLO
SE

HAINSW
O

RTH CLO
SE

HAINSW
O

RTH CLO
SE

HAINSW
O

RTH CLO
SE

HA
INSW

O
RTH CLOSE

HAINSW
O

RTH CLO
SE

HA
INSW

O
RTH CLOSE

19

19a

17

19

15

Stables

TCB

A 606
A 606
A 606

A 606
A 606

A 606
A 606
A 606
A 606

22

24

2

Pump

8

12

SQ
U

IR
ES C

LO
SE

SQ
U

IR
ES C

LO
SE

SQ
U

IR
ES C

LO
SE

SQ
U

IR
ES C

LO
SE

SQ
U

IR
ES C

LO
SE

SQ
U

IR
ES C

LO
SE

SQ
U

IR
ES C

LO
SE

SQ
U

IR
ES C

LO
SE

SQ
U

IR
ES C

LO
SE

7

25

5

11

1

31

8

2

The Orchard

9

1

4

1

12

2

RANGE
RANGE
RANGE
RANGE
RANGE
RANGE
RANGE
RANGE
RANGE

8

17

25

28

23

19

15
13

Islington Lodge Stud

A
 606

A
 606

A
 606

A
 606

A
 606

A
 606

A
 606

A
 606

A
 606

2

126.2m

Magnolia House

40

2

13
0.

1m

44

4

12

M
E

LTO
N

 R
O

A
D

M
ELTO

N
 R

O
A

D

M
ELTO

N
 R

O
A

D

M
E

LTO
N

 R
O

A
D

M
ELTO

N
 R

O
A

D

M
E

LTO
N

 R
O

A
D

M
ELTO

N
 R

O
A

D

M
ELTO

N
 R

O
A

D

M
ELTO

N
 R

O
A

D

8

10

25

7a

Track

131.1m

Pasture Farm

Pond

6

127.5m

29

4

THE
THE
THE
THE
THE
TH

E
TH

E
TH

E
THE

Lay-by

64

136.9m

54

Lodge Park

16

22

20

9

Mobile Home Park

133

RANKSBOROUGH DRIVE

RANKSBOROUGH DRIVE

RANKSBOROUGH DRIVE

RANKSBOROUGH DRIVE

RANKSBOROUGH DRIVE

RANKSBOROUGH DRIVE

RANKSBOROUGH DRIVE

RANKSBOROUGH DRIVE

RANKSBOROUGH DRIVE

2

1

43

5

3a

24

Mobile Home Park

Brocklehurst Park

6b

27

6

Pond

T
ra

ck

Pond

27

7

37

23

21

26

39

25

Dolben Lodge

12

11

7

6a

28

16

8

15

18

Tr
ac

k

Hall

Mobile Home Park

41

42

The Park

Mobile Home Park

45

Lonsborough Gardens

31

43
41

23

15

10
12

11

19

Ranksborough

LB

Ranksborough

The Homestead

Farm

Caravan Site

Pond

132.3m

130.3m

COLD OVERTON ROAD

COLD OVERTON ROAD

COLD OVERTON ROAD

COLD OVERTON ROAD

COLD OVERTON ROAD

COLD OVERTON ROAD

COLD OVERTON ROAD

COLD OVERTON ROAD

COLD OVERTON ROAD

Track

ETL

Track

Farm
Cottages

Pond

Pond

24a

Tr
ac

k

Path

16

1

9

8

11

14

2

6
10

12

8

17

10

13

1
5

The Courtyard

2

6

2

14

1

1

29

139.3m

The Glade

12a

1

Pond

D
rain

D
ra

in

FB

Rutland County Council    
    Scale - 1:5000
    Time of plot: 16:55
    Date of plot: 03/06/2015

© Crown copyright and database rights [2013] 
Ordnance Survey [100018056]

Catmose,
Oakham,
Rutland
LE15 6HP

11
14

jhoward
Typewritten Text
                      Variation of 106 Agreement - Ranksborough Hall 



REPORT NO: 103/2015 
 

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL &  
LICENSING COMMITTEE 

 
16 June 2015  

 

Application 2014/0962/FUL - Use of land as a residential 
caravan site Ranksborough Hall, Ranksborough Drive, 

Langham 
 

Report of the Director for Places (Environment, Planning and Transport) 
 

STRATEGIC 
OBJECTIVE: 

Ensuring the impact of development is managed 

 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 

1.1 The purpose of this report is for members to consider how extant obligations 
contained within a S106 Legal Agreement should be addressed in respect of 
a new planning permission to be issued for the residential part of 
Ranksborough Park, Langham. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATION 
 

2.1 GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION subject to the conditions set out in the 
original Committee report in the Appendix and to the obligations 
contained in the existing s.106 agreement being discharged via the 
issue by the Councils Legal Officer of a letter of comfort. 

 
3. BACKGROUND 

3.1 Ranksborough Park was operating under a 2003 planning permission (“the 
original permission”) relating to 3 distinct areas, the residential site, the 
holiday lodge site and the touring caravan site. As can be seen in the original 
report in the Appendix, the residential part of the site was operating outside of 
the original planning permission, which itself contained inappropriate 
conditions for a caravan site, the layout of which is controlled by the Site 
Licence.  

 
3.2 The original permission was accompanied by a planning obligation (s106 

agreement) which limited the number of units on the residential site to 104 
and further provided that no unit should be replaced without the approval of 
the local authority unless it did not extend beyond the footprint of the original 
unit. These requirements are unreasonable in planning terms and such issues 
are again covered by a Site Licence. 

 
3.3 A planning application has been submitted to seek a fresh new permission for 

the residential part of the site which, in the case of a caravan site, relates only 
to the use of the land.  

 
3.4 The application was considered by the previous Development Control and 

Licensing Committee on 3rd February 2015 and was approved subject to 
conditions and the modification of the existing S106 agreement.  

 12
15



3.5 Under the terms of the previous committee authorisation, modification of the 
s.106 Agreement would have involved execution of a formal legal document 
(Deed of Variation) for which costs would be incurred by the applicant. The 
Council’s legal advisor has suggested that given the particular circumstances 
of this application and the discharge of the obligations required this could be 
dealt with much more efficiently by sending the applicant a formal letter of 
comfort. This would confirm that the obligations in the original S106 
agreement would not be enforced on the residential site subject of the new 
planning application. Again the reason for this is that such matters are dealt 
with by the Site Licence. This would have the effect of protecting the owner 
against enforcement of the original S106 agreement when new units are 
placed on site 

 
3.6 Under the terms of the Council’s Constitution officers do not have authority to 

issue the letter of comfort in place of a Deed of Variation.  Accordingly 
members are asked to uphold their earlier decision to grant permission, save 
the obligations in the original agreement relating to the residential land being 
discharged via issue by the Councils Legal Officer of a letter of comfort rather 
than Deed of Variation.  

 
 
 

 
 

Background Papers Report Author 
 Mr N Hodgett 

 
 Tel No: (01572) 722577 
 e-mail: planning@rutland.gov.uk 
 

13
16



Application: 2014/0962/FUL ITEM 6  
Proposal: Use of land as a residential caravan site 
Address: Ranksborough Hall, Ranksborough Drive, Langham 
Applicant:  Mr Tony White Parish LANGHAM 
Agent: Mr Mark Southerton,  Ward Langham 
Reason for presenting to Committee: Local Objections/Interest 
Date of Committee 3 February 2015 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

The proposal is to seek a fresh planning permission for the residential element of the 
site. This is due to over restrictive conditions being placed on the existing 
permission which deal with issues that should rightly be covered by the Site 
Licence. Many residents are concerned that the new permission would pave the way 
for units to be moved off site and cause distress inconvenience to residents.  
 
The planning system deals with land use and, insofar as a caravan site is concerned, 
it is simply for the control of the use of the land. The internal layout of the site, 
together with facilities, is covered by the Site Licence, which is implemented under 
separate legislation, as are the rights of residents, and is not the concern of this 
Committee. 
 
A modification of the existing S106 agreement relating to the site would be required. 
 

 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
APPROVAL, subject to the modification of the S106 Agreement and the following 

conditions: 
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be commenced within 3 years of the date 
of this permission. 
Reason: To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990, as amended by the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004. 
 

2. The applicant shall give written notice to the Local Planning Authority within 28 days 
of the implementation of this permission. 
Reason: To ensure that the LPA is clear when it has been implemented in the 
interest of sound and proper planning. 

 
Notes to Applicant:  

 If you propose to remove trees on site you must be aware that protected species, 
particularly bats, may be present, it is your responsibility to ensure that protected 
species and their habitats are not harmed. Advice should be sought from Natural 
England if you are in any doubt.  

 There is a limit on the amount of timber that can be felled without a licence from the 
Forestry Commission.  

 
 
 

14
17

rpedley_12
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX 1



Site & Surroundings 
 
1. The site is located to the west side of Langham, outside but adjoining the Planned 

Limits to Development (PLD) and the Conservation Area. The Conservation Area 
boundary runs along the west side of the last house on Ranksborough Drive and 
along the wall on the north east boundary of the site with The Range. The site has, 
since 1957, been used to some extent for caravanning purposes. The overall site 
now has 3 distinct areas controlled by the current planning permission and a S106 
agreement. These relate to the residential area, a holiday lodge area and a touring 
caravan area, all of which are limited to those specific uses. 
 

2. The extent of the site in this application co-incides with the existing area of the 
residential part of site previously approved. 
 

3. The mobile homes on site are largely privately owned but sit on rented plots owned 
by the applicant. The site operates an „over 55‟s only‟ rule, but that is a site rule 
rather than a planning or licensing requirement. 

 

Proposal 
 
4. The site covered by the application is attached at APPENDIX 1.The application does 

not involve an extension of the site onto other land. This is an application to seek a 
fresh planning permission to cover the residential element of Ranksborough Park. 
The existing permission, 2002/0283 contains several conditions which should 
properly be dealt with by a Site Licence and should not have been imposed on a 
planning permission, although at the time this may not have been so clear cut as it is 
now. As such the conditions are „ultra vires‟ or unlawful, as they do not meet the 
statutory tests for conditions set out in the National Planning Policy Guidance 
(NPPG) which replaced  the former Circular 11/95 on the use of Conditions. 
 

5. Examples of these conditions are shown in italics as follows: 
 

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in strict conformity with the 
details shown on the submitted plans and specifications accompanying the 
application and no caravans (Residential Park Homes or Lodge Style Holiday 
Homes), shall be sited in any position other than shown on the submitted plans 
unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Notwithstanding the details submitted with the application, the 'Residential Park 
Homes' shall comprise the following types of units or units of no lesser quality of 
material, construction and design as indicated by the 'Homeseeker Park Homes', 
'Wessex Park Homes'. 'Tingdene Park Homes' and 'Cosalt Park Homes' submitted in 
illustration of the types of units proposed. 
 
Notwithstanding the details submitted with the application, the 'Lodge Style Holiday 
Home' caravan units shall comprise the following types of units or units of no lesser 
quality of material, construction and design as indicated by the 'Cosalt Holiday 
Homes', 'Pinelog' (Pinelodges) and 'Omar' (Kingfisher) range submitted in illustration 
of the types of units proposed. 

 
6. The reference to specific types and design/manufacturer is not warranted. These are 

matters covered by the license and even then specific manufacturers cannot be 
specified. The term „of no lesser quality‟ is vague, unenforceable and meaningless in 
this instance. 

15
18



 
Before any development is commenced, details of the areas to be allocated as play 
areas and/or open spaces shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  The approved areas shall be made available for use in 
accordance with details which shall have previously been submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 
7. The provision of open space and play areas is again dealt with by a site licence. 
 

Details of the siting of any proposed garage units within the Residential Park Homes 
areas A and C as identified on the Approved Plan Ref: 14.100/PHL1B shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before any such 
garage is provided.  The type of garage shall be of no lesser quality of materials, 
construction and design than indicated by the Compton Garages 'Banbury' submitted 
in illustration and shall be of a maximum size of 6.7 metres long by 3.0 metres wide. 

 
8. The wording of this final condition including reference to „lesser‟ is again vague and 

unenforceable. Area C is also the „holiday‟ site so is incorrect. 
 

9. For clarity, drainage is also dealt with by a combination of License and Building 
Regulations. The consideration of planning issues is therefore limited to land use 
issues and possible off site impacts. Any development required to comply with the 
conditions of a site licence is also exempt from Planning Control. 

 
10. The holiday park and the touring site would remain subject to the original planning 

permission as they are relatively newly laid out and are not fully occupied, so not 
subject to the difficulties and pressures of the residential area. A modification would 
be required to the existing S106 agreement to ensure that this remained in force. 

 

Relevant Planning History 
 
The earliest planning records relating to the use of this site as a caravan park go back to 
1957. There have been over 50 applications, permissions and refusals for development and 
use of land related to the leisure use of the land in the intervening years. The following are 
the most relevant records: 
 
Application Description Decision  
1997/0538 Change of use of land to accommodate 34 

lodges as part of upgrade and restructure of 
caravan park facilities.  

Refused – Allowed on 
Appeal July 98 – 
Limited to Holiday use 
only. 

2002/0283 Change of Use of part of touring caravan site to 
site 46 'Lodge Style' Holiday Home Caravans.  
Deletion of Condition 2 of Appeal Decision Ref: 
APP/A2470/A/98/293383/P5 dated 27/07/1998 
(12 month occupancy Condition for Holiday 
Homes).  Variation of Condition 5 of Planning 
Permission Ref: 77/0491 to permit 26 Holiday 
Homes to be used for residential occupancy 
(Condition relates to 12 month occupancy limit). 
 

Approved July 03 
(This is the current 
permission covering the 
whole site). 

 
 

16
19



Planning Guidance and Policy 
 
National Planning Policy Framework 
 
Presumption in favour of sustainable development 
Support a prosperous rural economy 
Deliver a wide choice of quality homes 
 
The Rutland Core Strategy (2011) 
 
CS3 – Settlement hierarchy – Langham = Smaller Service Centre 
CS4 – Location of Development 
CS21 – The natural environment 
CS22 – The historic environment 
 
Site Allocations and Polices DPD (2014) 
 
SP6 – Housing in the countryside 
SP8 – Mobile Homes and Residential caravans 
 

Consultations 
 
See APPENDIX 2. 
 

Neighbour Representations 
 

11. There has been just under 30 letters from residents on the site (7 from one person), 
many of whom have been concerned about what a new permission might mean and 
fears that they may be moved off site or to other plots if a permission is granted. 
Initial fears were based on a misunderstanding of the purpose of the proposal, 
including the fact that no layout was shown and caravans were mentioned rather 
than mobile homes. A briefing note was supplied by Officers to the local residents 
Group (and the Parish Council) who circulated it amongst their members.  
 

12. Concerns have also been made regarding potential harm to bat roosts, especially in 
the trees on site, that the current Licence is out of date, that the previous planning 
permission has been disregarded and querying answers on the application form.  

 
13. Landscaping and screening of the site is also an issue that has been raised.  
 

Planning Assessment 
 
14. The main issue is the need to simplify the existing planning permission for the site 

which has inappropriate conditions attached to it which deal with issues that should 
properly be controlled by a site licence. This involves consideration of the principle of 
the use of the site and landscape/visual impacts. There is also a concern about 
ecology. 

 
Background 
 
15. The original definition of a “caravan” in the 1960 Caravan Sites and Control of 

Development Act includes “any structure designed or adapted for human habitation 
which is capable of being moved from one place to another (whether by being towed, 

17
20



or by being transported on a motor vehicle or trailer) and any motor vehicle so 
designed or adapted, but does not include - (a) any railway rolling-stock which is for 
the time being on rails forming part of a railway system, or (b) any tent”. This was 
amended in 1968 to include „double unit‟ mobile homes. 

 

16. The entire basis for planning permission being required for a caravan site rests on 
s55(1) where it is stated that “the making of any material change in the use of any 
building or other land” is development. A conventional caravan structure is not 
operational development because of its mobility and for the purposes of sec 55 
planning law has the status of a chattel and it is thus a use of the land on which it is 
stationed.  
 

17. With limited exceptions. all residential and non-residential caravan sites need 
planning permission and a site licence. In addition to planning permission, a site 
licence is required which sets out the standards for site layout, access, services and 
safety requirements. Licences are issued to sites with standard conditions relating to 
the following: 

 
Density of the site 
Spacing between caravans 
Drinking water 
Waste water disposal 
Water supplies 
Toilets and chemical waste disposal arrangements 
Washing facilities and drainage sanitation 
Showers 
Refuse disposal 
 

Parking arrangements 
Site notices 
Fire safety 
Roads and footpaths 
Hard standings 
Telephones on site 
Liquefied petroleum gas (LPG) storage 
Electrical installations 
Recreational space 
 

18. Planning conditions should try not to compromise the operation of Model Standards 
for the internal arrangements of caravan sites, but conditions imposed often do 
impose requirements relating to site layout and internal amenity, especially in 
sensitive site circumstances. In practice, liaison procedures between planning and 
environmental health departments (the latter normally have licensing responsibility), 
as required in the 1960 Act, usually ensure a common approach at an early stage. It 
is important to note that matters of site layout and amenity provision required by a 
licence are permitted development in the absence of any conditions to the contrary 
on a planning permission. 

19. Caravan sites with permanently sited caravans (including Park Homes) which are 
occupied all year around are licensed by the Council under Section 3 of the Caravan 
Sites and Control of Development 1960, as amended by the Mobile Homes Act 2013. 
Such sites must have planning permission before they are issued with a licence. The 
Government has issued Model Standards for Licenses for residential caravan sites 
(April 2008). These standards only apply to those sites which contain caravans that 
are used as permanent residential units. They do not apply to sites used exclusively 
for holidays or touring caravan sites (for which separate model standards have been 
issued). This Council uses those standards on its residential sites for licensing 
purposes. 

 
Use of the Land for a Caravan Site 
 
20. In terms of land use planning, it is the use of the land as a caravan site and its 

external impacts that need to be considered. On that basis the conditions set out 
above which were attached to the existing permission are „ultra vires‟ and should not 

18
21



have been imposed. They are also restrictive as it will not be possible to comply with 
the conditions relating to the design of mobile homes, especially as time goes by and 
manufacturers cease trading or change models. Any movement of any mobile on site 
would also have required planning permission. The actual use of the land within the 
red application line is clearly well established and is considered to be acceptable. 
Views of the site from a public viewpoint are limited. There are filtered views into the 
site from Cold Overton Road, more so in winter, although the nearest (visible) 
boundary of the site is around 180m from the road. Views from Cold Overton Road in 
summer are restricted to gateways and are fleeting only. There is a public footpath 
which runs through the site but not the particular section subject of this application. 
The site is well screened from Cold Overton Road where the footpath leaves the 
highway. 

 
21. There is no objection from the highway authority in terms of the use of the access. 
 
Intensification 
 
22. The is little scope for intensification of use of the land for siting more caravans as the 

site is almost full in terms of being able to meet the space standards in a Licence. 
The maximum number of units on site is therefore finite and even when reached is 
unlikely to have any more significant impact from outside the site than has existed for 
many years, both in terms of visual impact and highway safety. If larger, „double„ 
units replace single units, there will be less impact on traffic movements and on 
overall numbers on site.  

Landscaping 

23. The question of landscaping, especially on the boundary of The Glade, nearest to 
Cold Overton Road has been raised. Some mobile homes have been historically and 
recently sited along this boundary, being in contravention of the existing permission 
as none were shown there on the „approved‟ layout. From the limited evidence 
available, it is not clear that there was a significant hedge along this boundary.  Some 
residents suggest this was mainly brambles. Some remaining vegetation at one end 
suggests this may have been the case. 

24. This boundary borders a field which means that it is approximately 180m from the 
boundary of that field with Cold Overton Road where there is a significant hedge, 
providing good screening even in winter and virtually total screening in summer. To 
require a new strong boundary hedge along this boundary of the site would be 
difficult to enforce as there is insufficient evidence as to what was there before new 
units were sited, and it would mean displacing privately owned mobile homes to 
another part of the Park to make sufficient space for planting.  In view of the distance 
from the public road and the good screen on Cold Overton Road frontage is not 
considered necessary to require such relatively draconian measures. 

25. Any boundary landscaping which has been removed has had no impact on the 
Conservation Area as it is well removed from that part of the site. 

26. There are many trees on the overall Ranksborough site, including within the 
application site. Many are on established boundaries but some are located within 
individual plots and between the named areas of the site. It is difficult to suggest that 
the trees are important visually from a public viewpoint as there are not many 
instances where they can be seen from such a point. The trees are not protected at 
the moment so could be removed without control. It was not considered necessary to 
impose conditions on their retention in the current permission. On that basis it is not 
recommended that there is cause to do so now. One resident has pointed out that 
there are bats seen on site and may be using the trees for roosting. Surveys cannot 

19
22



be carried out at this time of year and the owner has a statutory responsibility to 
ensure that when removing trees, every care is taken to ensure that protected 
species and their habitats are not harmed in any way. As no trees are proposed to be 
felled as part of this application there is nothing more that needs to be done on that 
issue.  

27. There is an established group of trees inside the site boundary wall where it abuts 
The Range. Residents there express concern that more mobile homes might be 
located in that area. Access to that area is very limited as existing mobiles all have 
gardens cutting it off from the access road. There is also a bank between units on 
Lodge Park and these trees which also helps to screen the site from dwellings on 
The Range. Lodge Park residents have control up to the top of the bank. There are 
trees on The Range itself which soften the approach to the dwellings at the end 
nearest to the site. Again it is not considered necessary to impose limitations on this 
area. 

28. On this basis, and considering the use of the land and its impact on the surroundings 
of the site, there are limited conditions which can be imposed on this new permission. 
As stated above, many issues are dealt with by the Site Licence. 

 
 

20
23



 

 

SITE (red 
line only) 

Lonsborough 
Gardens 

The Glade 

Lodge Park 

The (Old) Park 

Conservation Area 
boundary 

21
24

ctaylor
Typewritten Text

ctaylor_1
Typewritten Text

rpedley_13
Typewritten Text
ORIGINAL APPENDIX 1



 
Consultation Responses 
 
RCC Environmental Protection 
 
Following my consideration of the above planning application and its relevance to the Licensing of 
Park Homes, I note the following. These comments relate only to the planning related issues for 
which this application is made.  
 
With regards to the existing planning conditions that control the site, though relevant at the time of 
the original planning application, both the law relating to Caravan sites and Mobile homes and the 
relevant standards have since changed and this has meant the updating of the planning 
permission is somewhat essential to comply with them. Please note that Caravans encompasses 
mobile homes and that to remain on the site it must still meet the definition of being a caravan.  
 
The applicant is correct that a number of redundant units are no longer fit for purpose, having 
issues with their floors, frames, are not weatherproof and require removing. The areas of the site 
on which they are currently housed will also at the same time need redeveloping providing all the 
roadways, parking spaces and other essential amenities such as lighting, communal drainage , 
electricity and water supply as demanded by the licence and its conditions.  
 
It is agreed also that there are areas of the site, in particular between the glade and the “Old park” 
areas that would benefit from redevelopment and subsequent maintenance.  
 
I can confirm that the conditions attached to the caravan site licence should (and are) used to 
enforce standards including spacing and maintenance of the site along with numerous amenity 
provisions and other health and safety related issues.  Though not a matter for the planning 
application, the existing Licence will need updating with regards both the current ownership of the 
site and also the numbers of units (park homes) permitted on the site should reflect this, should it 
be approved.  
 
The site owner is currently exceeding the permitted number of park homes on site as per the 
previous planning application.   
 
I am awaiting the decision of this application before considering what enforcement action may be 
necessary to be taken by the Council. However the Council is sensitive to the needs of the owners 
of Park Homes on the site and careful consideration of the effect of this action would need to be 
taken prior to any enforcement action being taken.   
 
The current density of units on site is lower than is possible to accommodate. There is little / no 
room for new units to be installed on either the Lonsborough Gardens area or the Lodge Park 
areas. The area most in need of redevelopment is the Old Park area. There are additional 
difficulties in redeveloping parts of the site without moving the units, which entails significant risk to 
the older units.  
 
Note for applicant  
 
Should planning permission be obtained, prior to further development, the site licence holder must 
update the existing site plan, to scale, including pitch numbers. The licence holder should be take 
particular care that any new bases and their accompanying park homes are laid out in accordance 
with the site licence conditions and in accordance with building control regulations.  
 
Any associated drainage, water, electricity and infrastructure works should be adequately installed 
in line with the relevant codes of practice and relevant regulations and assurances provided that 
any existing infrastructure, where used, is adequate in its capacity and function to cope with the 
demands placed on it.  

22
25

ctaylor_2
Typewritten Text

rpedley_14
Typewritten Text
ORIGINAL APPENDIX 2



 
RCC Highways 
 
No objection 
 
Environment Agency 
 
We have no objection to the above application. Based on the information presented in the 
application the sites surface water is shown to discharge via infiltration. Your Authority should be 
satisfied that infiltration drainage is feasible, can be adopted and properly maintained up to the 
design standard of 1% plus climate change critical storm. 
 
English Heritage 

 
 
Langham Parish Council 
 
Ranksborough Caravan Park is situated in open countryside, outside of the Planned Limits of 
Development. This application is mainly concerned with the southern area of the site that is known 
as Ranksborough Hall Park, often referred to as The Park. This area is older and longer 
established than the more recent modern developments of Lodge Park and Lonsborough Gardens. 
 
The mobile homes are typically older in this area. They do provide affordable accommodation for a 
considerable number of families. The area is adjacent to fields and is readily viewed from the Cold 
Overton Road, particularly in winter months. Pre application advice has been sought. Although this 
application may be seen as an attractive ‘tidying up’ proposal on paper, the interlinked and 
subsequent changes then allowable within the park as proposed, may be considerable and 
detrimental. 
 
Due to the position of the land and its status outside the planned limits of development, it is 
essential that the existing arrangement, where the Local Planning Authority (Rutland County 
Council) has some control over the development, remain in place. There are also concerns over 
the rights of mobile home residents in The Park, the application stating that the park is not vacant 
(Q14). No information is given as to how it is proposed to deal with these families and their present 
type of tenure. Many are long established residents and it is essential that these people have a say 
in future development that may affect them. Further observations: 
 
 Work is needed to bring many homes on The Glade part of the park back from dereliction 

before extending further. 
 The infrastructure, especially water pressure, will not tolerate any expansion to the site. 
 The look and ‘fit’ of any extension is not consistent with its surroundings as the plan is to 

homes up the The Range and to the back of houses on Ranksborough Drive. There needs to 
remain a separation. 

 Claim is made that there will be increased employment and benefits for the local economy. It is 
difficult to justify this optimism with only an increase of a single half time person (Q19). 

 It is stated that the trees at Ranksborough are protected. Langham Parish Council is not aware 
of any statutory protection that exists for the trees on the site. 

23
26

ctaylor_3
Typewritten Text



 It is understandable that the applicant wishes to have the option of expanding this business, 
but it would not be appropriate for this to take place without consent from Rutland County 
Council. 

 
Further unapproved development of this site may have a detrimental effect on existing residents, 
the open countryside and on the village of Langham, and therefore the existing arrangement 
should remain. 
 
Langham Parish Council (Further Letter) 
 

 

24
27

ctaylor_4
Typewritten Text



 

 
 
LCC Archaeology 
 
Having reviewed the application against the Leicestershire and Rutland Historic Environment 
Record (HER), we do not believe the proposal will result in a significant direct or indirect impact 
upon the archaeological interest or setting of any known or potential heritage assets. We would 
therefore advise that the application warrants no further archaeological action (NPPF Section 12, 
para. 128‐129). 
 
Conservation Officer 
 
The site is on the periphery of Langham Conservation Area and within the grounds of 
Ranksborough Hall, a late 19th century country house which, although not listed, is of local historic 
significance. As such, the hall would fall within the category of a non designated heritage asset in 
the National Planning Policy Framework. Paragraph 135 of the NPPF states that the effect of an 
application on the significance of such an asset should be taken into account in determining a 
planning application. In this respect, the reinstatement of boundary landscaping to soften the 
appearance the development from the conservation area and to protect the setting of the hall 
should be requested. 
 
LCC Ecology 
 
Given that there are reports of a bat roost in the immediate vicinity we would recommend that a 
condition is forwarded to the applicant requiring the long-term retention of existing trees and 
hedgerows on site. This would ensure that bat foraging routes around the site are retained. 

25
28

ctaylor_5
Typewritten Text

ctaylor_6
Typewritten Text



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BLANK PAGE 

29

Agenda Item 4



 

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 230m

34
32

1
14

11
2

UNSTON ROAD
UNSTON ROAD
UNSTON ROAD
UNSTON ROAD
UNSTON ROAD
UNSTON ROAD
UNSTON ROAD
UNSTON ROAD
UNSTON ROAD
UNSTON ROAD
UNSTON ROAD
UNSTON ROAD
UNSTON ROAD
UNSTON ROAD
UNSTON ROAD
UNSTON ROAD
UNSTON ROAD
UNSTON ROAD
UNSTON ROAD
UNSTON ROAD
UNSTON ROAD
UNSTON ROAD
UNSTON ROAD
UNSTON ROAD
UNSTON ROAD

8
Depot

1

Works

2

L
O

N
G

 R
O

L
O

N
G

 R
O

L
O

N
G

 R
O

L
O

N
G

 R
O

L
O

N
G

 R
O

L
O

N
G

 R
O

L
O

N
G

 R
O

L
O

N
G

 R
O

L
O

N
G

 R
O

L
O

N
G

 R
O

L
O

N
G

 R
O

L
O

N
G

 R
O

L
O

N
G

 R
O

L
O

N
G

 R
O

L
O

N
G

 R
O

L
O

N
G

 R
O

L
O

N
G

 R
O

L
O

N
G

 R
O

L
O

N
G

 R
O

L
O

N
G

 R
O

L
O

N
G

 R
O

L
O

N
G

 R
O

L
O

N
G

 R
O

L
O

N
G

 R
O

L
O

N
G

 R
O

6
7

21

6
4

11 15 19

G
R

A
F

F
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

G
R

A
F

F
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

G
R

A
F

F
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

G
R

A
F

F
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

G
R

A
F

F
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

G
R

A
F

F
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

G
R

A
F

F
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

G
R

A
F

F
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

G
R

A
F

F
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

G
R

A
F

F
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

G
R

A
F

F
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

G
R

A
F

F
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

G
R

A
F

F
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

G
R

A
F

F
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

G
R

A
F

F
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

G
R

A
F

F
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

G
R

A
F

F
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

G
R

A
F

F
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

G
R

A
F

F
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

G
R

A
F

F
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

G
R

A
F

F
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

G
R

A
F

F
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

G
R

A
F

F
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

G
R

A
F

F
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

G
R

A
F

F
H

A
M

 D
R

IV
E

7
4

1

50

54

8
2

89
91

9395

1

35

10
68

12 14
16

22

JOHN
JOHN
JOHN
JOHN
JOHN
JOHN
JOHN
JOHN
JOHN
JOHN
JOHN
JOHN
JOHN
JOHN
JOHN
JOHN
JOHN
JOHN
JOHN
JOHN
JOHN
JOHN
JOHN
JOHN
JOHN16

99 97

24

3

98

102108

107.0m

25

87

85

T
H

E
 S

ID
IN

G
S

T
H

E
 S

ID
IN

G
S

T
H

E
 S

ID
IN

G
S

T
H

E
 S

ID
IN

G
S

T
H

E
 S

ID
IN

G
S

T
H

E
 S

ID
IN

G
S

T
H

E
 S

ID
IN

G
S

T
H

E
 S

ID
IN

G
S

T
H

E
 S

ID
IN

G
S

T
H

E
 S

ID
IN

G
S

T
H

E
 S

ID
IN

G
S

T
H

E
 S

ID
IN

G
S

T
H

E
 S

ID
IN

G
S

T
H

E
 S

ID
IN

G
S

T
H

E
 S

ID
IN

G
S

T
H

E
 S

ID
IN

G
S

T
H

E
 S

ID
IN

G
S

T
H

E
 S

ID
IN

G
S

T
H

E
 S

ID
IN

G
S

T
H

E
 S

ID
IN

G
S

T
H

E
 S

ID
IN

G
S

T
H

E
 S

ID
IN

G
S

T
H

E
 S

ID
IN

G
S

T
H

E
 S

ID
IN

G
S

T
H

E
 S

ID
IN

G
S

22
 to

 4
4

46
 to

 6
8

13

1

15 to 31
33

35

C

19
 to

 2
9

3
1 

to
 4

1

43
 to

 5
3

WilliamWilliamWilliamWilliamWilliamWilliamWilliamWilliamWilliamWilliamWilliamWilliamWilliamWilliamWilliamWilliamWilliamWilliamWilliamWilliamWilliamWilliamWilliamWilliamWilliam6
DalbyDalbyDalbyDalbyDalbyDalbyDalbyDalbyDalbyDalbyDalbyDalbyDalbyDalbyDalbyDalbyDalbyDalbyDalbyDalbyDalbyDalbyDalbyDalbyDalby
WalkWalkWalkWalkWalkWalkWalkWalkWalkWalkWalkWalkWalkWalkWalkWalkWalkWalkWalkWalkWalkWalkWalkWalkWalk

Chapel

1
3

19 to 26

14 to 18

27 to 41

D
E

R
W

E
N

T

D
E

R
W

E
N

T

D
E

R
W

E
N

T

D
E

R
W

E
N

T

D
E

R
W

E
N

T

D
E

R
W

E
N

T

D
E

R
W

E
N

T

D
E

R
W

E
N

T

D
E

R
W

E
N

T

D
E

R
W

E
N

T

D
E

R
W

E
N

T

D
E

R
W

E
N

T

D
E

R
W

E
N

T

D
E

R
W

E
N

T

D
E

R
W

E
N

T

D
E

R
W

E
N

T

D
E

R
W

E
N

T

D
E

R
W

E
N

T

D
E

R
W

E
N

T

D
E

R
W

E
N

T

D
E

R
W

E
N

T

D
E

R
W

E
N

T

D
E

R
W

E
N

T

D
E

R
W

E
N

T

D
E

R
W

E
N

T17

38

2 to 12

14
1864

to
 86

40

to 62

W
ard B

dy

Sub

to 1
10

55

8
8

M
ile P

ost 93.5

El

Sta

28

2

1
8

1

12

1519

Rutland County Council    
    Scale - 1:1250
    Time of plot: 16:04
    Date of plot: 03/06/2015

© Crown copyright and database rights [2013] 
Ordnance Survey [100018056]

Catmose,
Oakham,
Rutland
LE15 6HP

28
30

jhoward_1
Typewritten Text
2015/0160/FUL



Application: 2015/0160/FUL Item 1 
Proposal: Demolition of existing garages and construction of two affordable 2 

bedroom bungalows with associated parking. 
Address: Land Adj To 112, Derwent Drive, Oakham, Rutland 
Applicant:  Spire Homes 

 
Parish Oakham 

Agent: RG & P Ltd Ward Oakham South West 
Reason for presenting to Committee: Objections 
Date of Committee 16 June 2015 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

The loss of a garage block to allow development of 2 bungalows has generated objections from  
Oakham Town Council and 2 local residents. Notwithstanding the objections, the developer has 
demonstrated that there is adequate garage space available on Derwent Drive to cater for those 
residents that currently occupy garages to be demolished. On that basis there is no other reason 
to withhold planning permission. 
 

  

RECOMMENDATION 
 
APPROVAL, subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. The development shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date of this 
permission. 
Reason – To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990, as amended by the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

 
2. The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete 

accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers 40284-002A, 40284-
003, 40284-004, 40284-007A, 50080-40284 and the conclusions in Chapter 9 of the 
acoustic report submitted with the application. 
Reason - For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 

 
3. All hard landscaping, planting, seeding or turfing shown on the approved landscaping 

details shall be carried out during the first planting and seeding season (October - March 
inclusive) following the commencement of the development or in such other phased 
arrangement as may be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  Any trees or 
shrubs which, within a period of 5 years of being planted die are removed or seriously 
damaged or seriously diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others 
of similar size and species. 
Reason: To ensure that the landscaping is carried out at the appropriate time and is 
properly maintained. 

 
4. The bungalows hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the boundary treatments 

shown on the approved plan have been implemented. The acoustic fence shall be 
subsequently retained. 
Reason: To ensure that occupiers are not unduly impacted by noise from the railway line. 
 
Note to applicant: Should any contamination be discovered on site you will need to liaise 
with the Council’s Environmental Protection team and the Environment Agency. 

 
 

 

29
31



Site & Surroundings 
 
1. The site is located at the northern end of Derwent Drive between the road and the railway 

line to the east. The site currently comprises a block of 13 single lock up garages set either 
side of a central access. 

 
2. To the south of the site is a 3 storey block of flats and to the north a pair of semi detached 

bungalows. At the rear, outside the application site, are a series of containers which are 
used for storage by local residents. 

 

Proposal 
 
3. The proposal is to demolish the garages and erect a pair of 2-bedroomed semi-detached 

bungalows with 2 parking spaces each at the front. The bungalows would be for affordable 
rent. See details in the Appendix. 

 
 

Planning Guidance and Policy 
 

National Planning Policy Framework 
 
 Presumption in favour of sustainable development 
 Encourage effective use of brownfield land 
 Deliver a wide choice of quality homes 
 
The Rutland Core Strategy (2011) 
 
CS3 – Settlement Hierarchy – Oakham identified as Main Town 
CS4 – Location of Development - Oakham will be the key focus for sustainable development 
 
Site Allocations and Polices DPD (2014) 
 
SP5 – Built development in towns & villages 
SP15 – Design & Amenity (including Access and parking) 
 
Consultations 
 
4.    LCC Archaeology      

 
 
 
 

5.    Highways        
 
 
 

6. LCC Ecology Unit     
 
 
 

7. Network Rail   
 
 
 

I do not believe the submitted application will result in a significant direct or 
indirect impact upon the archaeological interest or setting of any known or 
potential heritage assets.  I would therefore advise that the application 
warrants no further archaeological action (NPPF Section 12, para. 128-129). 
 
Originally objected to loss of garages but now has no objection because the 
applicant has offered the current occupiers of the garages alternative 
garages within a close proximity to the development 

The ecology report submitted in support of this application (BSG Ecology, 
December 2014) is satisfactory.  No protected species or ecological features 
of note were identified, and no further action is required. 
 
Network Rail has no objection in principle to the development, but sets out 
safety requirements which must be met during development. These would be 
sent to the applicant as informatives. 
 
Recommend refusal of the construction of two affordable 2 bedroom 

30
32



8. Oakham Town Council  
 
 
 

9. The Environment 
Agency    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
10. Environmental 

Protection 

bungalows, however recommend demolition of the garages to provide 
parking for Derwent Drive residents only. 
 
We have reviewed the Phase 1 Geo-Environmental Report by William 
Saunders (ref:.11150/12) dated January 2015, with regard to the protection 
of controlled waters. Based on the available information, given the limited 
potential sources of contamination at the site and the sensitivity of 
groundwater in this location, we consider the site poses a low risk to 
controlled waters. 
 
We have no objection to the proposed development, subject to the inclusion 
of the condition below. Without this condition, the proposed development on 
this site poses an unacceptable risk to the environment and we would object 
to the application.  
 
Condition: 
 
If, during development, contamination not previously identified is found to be 
present at the site then no further development (unless otherwise agreed in 
writing with the local planning authority) shall be carried out until the 
developer has submitted a remediation strategy to the local planning 
authority detailing how this unsuspected contamination shall be dealt with 
and obtained written approval from the local planning authority. The 
remediation strategy shall be implemented as approved.  
Reason: To ensure that any unforeseen contamination is encountered during 
development is dealt with in an appropriate manner to protect controlled 
waters.  
 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) paragraph 109 states that the 
planning system should contribute to and enhance the natural and local 
environment by preventing both new and existing development from 
contributing to or being put at unacceptable risk from, or being adversely 
affected by unacceptable levels of water pollution. Government policy also 
states that planning policies and decisions should ensure that adequate site 
investigation information, prepared by a competent person, is presented 
(NPPF, paragraph 121). As you are aware the discharge of planning 
conditions rests with your Authority. It is therefore, essential that you are 
satisfied that the proposed draft condition meets the requirements of 
paragraph 4 of the National Planning Practice Guidance (Use of Planning 
Conditions, section 2). Please notify us immediately if you are unable to 
apply our suggested condition, as we may need to tailor our advice 
accordingly. In accordance with the Planning Practice Guidance 
(Determining a planning application, paragraph 019.  
 
I have reviewed the application and associated noise report by Acute 
Acoustics (reference 1784 – Oakham Derwent Drive). The report considers 
the impact of noise from the adjacent railway on future occupants of the 
proposed development and how these impacts can be mitigated. If the 
application is approved I would recommend that planning conditions are 
attached requiring the development to be in accordance with the 
recommendations in Chapter 9 of the above report, with the additional 
requirement that the close boarded acoustic fence is extended along the 
northern and southern boundaries until it at least it reaches a point parallel to 
the rear elevation of the proposed bungalows.  
 

 

31
33



Neighbour Representations 
 
11.  One local resident had no objections subject to: 
 

     The bungalows are let by the owners to new tenants and are not for the purpose of sale. It     
would also be wise for those tenants to be of mature age.  

     Prefer that the existing brick wall between our properties (112 Derwent Drive) is retained 
(if possible ) to at least 2.1 meters high. Alternatively a closed boarded wooden fence 2.1 
meters high would be fine 

 
12. Objections have been received from 2 local residents on the grounds of: 
 

    Adjacent resident, rented a garage here for 14 yrs – loss of parking for motorcycle and car 
    Derwent Drive is and always has been a terrible place for parking and at times dangerous 

emergency vehicles have been blocked before 
    Are these private or Spire Homes? 
    What will happen to our storage sheds behind the garages? 
    Would cause undue stress and disruption to elederly residents 
    a serious detrimental effect to the parking problem now experienced on Derwent Drive 

 

Planning Assessment 
 
13. The main issues are design, environmental and highway issues. 
 
14. The design and layout of the proposal is attractive and considered to be acceptable. There 

was a concern that the rear gardens in particular would be overshadowed by the flats to the 
south but technical evidence in the form of a shadow analysis supplied with the application 
indicates that shadows would only be cast over the entire gardens at midday in December, 
with dates in March June and September showing relatively little impact in terms of 
shadowing. This is considered to be acceptable. 

 
15. The application is accompanied by a noise assessment to address the proximity of the 

railway to the rear. This concludes in Chapter 9 that the bungalows should be constructed in 
brick with a 100mm sound absorbing layer above the ceilings and an acoustic fence be 
erected to the rear boundary. Environmental Protection Officers suggest this fence should 
wrap around the sides of the plots to the rear corner of each bungalow. A revised boundary 
treatment plan has been submitted showing the acoustic fence as requested by the 
Environmental Protection Officer. There are existing properties a similar distance from the 
railway on both sides. 

 
16. In terms of highway issues, local residents and the Town Council have objected on the 

grounds of loss of parking on the site. However, Spire Homes have provided evidence that 
only 10 of the 13 garages are occupied at present with only 5 tenants living within 100m of 
the site. One tenant who lives on Brooke Road also has a garage attached to their house. 
Spire has 2 other garage blocks at the southern end of Derwent Drive, just over 100m away, 
where there are 11 voids (in addition to 5 on West Road) which would be offered to current 
tenants on the application site in line with their existing policy. On this basis it is considered 
that it would be difficult to justify refusal on the grounds of loss of parking. The highway 
authority, whist having initial concerns about loss of garages, now has no objection based on 
the alternative provision. 

 
17. With regard to the condition required by the Environment Agency, there is no indication that 

the site suffers from any kind of contamination so the condition is not considered necessary 
in this case. An informative note to the applicant would be more appropriate. 

32
34



Site & Surroundings 
 
1. The site is located at the northern end of Derwent Drive between the road and the railway 

line to the east. The site currently comprises a block of 13 single lock up garages set either 
side of a central access. 

 
2. To the south of the site is a 3 storey block of flats and to the north a pair of semi detached 

bungalows. At the rear, outside the application site, are a series of containers which are 
used for storage by local residents. 

 

Proposal 
 
3. The proposal is to demolish the garages and erect a pair of 2-bedroomed semi-detached 

bungalows with 2 parking spaces each at the front. The bungalows would be for affordable 
rent. See details in the Appendix. 

 
 

Planning Guidance and Policy 
 

National Planning Policy Framework 
 
 Presumption in favour of sustainable development 
 Encourage effective use of brownfield land 
 Deliver a wide choice of quality homes 
 
The Rutland Core Strategy (2011) 
 
CS3 – Settlement Hierarchy – Oakham identified as Main Town 
CS4 – Location of Development - Oakham will be the key focus for sustainable development 
 
Site Allocations and Polices DPD (2014) 
 
SP5 – Built development in towns & villages 
SP15 – Design & Amenity (including Access and parking) 
 
Consultations 
 
4.    LCC Archaeology      

 
 
 
 

5.    Highways        
 
 
 

6. LCC Ecology Unit     
 
 
 

7. Network Rail   
 
 
 

I do not believe the submitted application will result in a significant direct or 
indirect impact upon the archaeological interest or setting of any known or 
potential heritage assets.  I would therefore advise that the application 
warrants no further archaeological action (NPPF Section 12, para. 128-129). 
 
Originally objected to loss of garages but now has no objection because the 
applicant has offered the current occupiers of the garages alternative 
garages within a close proximity to the development 

The ecology report submitted in support of this application (BSG Ecology, 
December 2014) is satisfactory.  No protected species or ecological features 
of note were identified, and no further action is required. 
 
Network Rail has no objection in principle to the development, but sets out 
safety requirements which must be met during development. These would be 
sent to the applicant as informatives. 
 
Recommend refusal of the construction of two affordable 2 bedroom 

33
35



8. Oakham Town Council  
 
 
 

9. The Environment 
Agency    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
10. Environmental 

Protection 

bungalows, however recommend demolition of the garages to provide 
parking for Derwent Drive residents only. 
 
We have reviewed the Phase 1 Geo-Environmental Report by William 
Saunders (ref:.11150/12) dated January 2015, with regard to the protection 
of controlled waters. Based on the available information, given the limited 
potential sources of contamination at the site and the sensitivity of 
groundwater in this location, we consider the site poses a low risk to 
controlled waters. 
 
We have no objection to the proposed development, subject to the inclusion 
of the condition below. Without this condition, the proposed development on 
this site poses an unacceptable risk to the environment and we would object 
to the application.  
 
Condition: 
 
If, during development, contamination not previously identified is found to be 
present at the site then no further development (unless otherwise agreed in 
writing with the local planning authority) shall be carried out until the 
developer has submitted a remediation strategy to the local planning 
authority detailing how this unsuspected contamination shall be dealt with 
and obtained written approval from the local planning authority. The 
remediation strategy shall be implemented as approved.  
Reason: To ensure that any unforeseen contamination is encountered during 
development is dealt with in an appropriate manner to protect controlled 
waters.  
 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) paragraph 109 states that the 
planning system should contribute to and enhance the natural and local 
environment by preventing both new and existing development from 
contributing to or being put at unacceptable risk from, or being adversely 
affected by unacceptable levels of water pollution. Government policy also 
states that planning policies and decisions should ensure that adequate site 
investigation information, prepared by a competent person, is presented 
(NPPF, paragraph 121). As you are aware the discharge of planning 
conditions rests with your Authority. It is therefore, essential that you are 
satisfied that the proposed draft condition meets the requirements of 
paragraph 4 of the National Planning Practice Guidance (Use of Planning 
Conditions, section 2). Please notify us immediately if you are unable to 
apply our suggested condition, as we may need to tailor our advice 
accordingly. In accordance with the Planning Practice Guidance 
(Determining a planning application, paragraph 019.  
 
I have reviewed the application and associated noise report by Acute 
Acoustics (reference 1784 – Oakham Derwent Drive). The report considers 
the impact of noise from the adjacent railway on future occupants of the 
proposed development and how these impacts can be mitigated. If the 
application is approved I would recommend that planning conditions are 
attached requiring the development to be in accordance with the 
recommendations in Chapter 9 of the above report, with the additional 
requirement that the close boarded acoustic fence is extended along the 
northern and southern boundaries until it at least it reaches a point parallel to 
the rear elevation of the proposed bungalows.  
 

 

34
36



Neighbour Representations 
 
11.  One local resident had no objections subject to: 
 

     The bungalows are let by the owners to new tenants and are not for the purpose of sale. It     
would also be wise for those tenants to be of mature age.  

     Prefer that the existing brick wall between our properties (112 Derwent Drive) is retained 
(if possible ) to at least 2.1 meters high. Alternatively a closed boarded wooden fence 2.1 
meters high would be fine 

 
12. Objections have been received from 2 local residents on the grounds of: 
 

    Adjacent resident, rented a garage here for 14 yrs – loss of parking for motorcycle and car 
    Derwent Drive is and always has been a terrible place for parking and at times dangerous 

emergency vehicles have been blocked before 
    Are these private or Spire Homes? 
    What will happen to our storage sheds behind the garages? 
    Would cause undue stress and disruption to elederly residents 
    a serious detrimental effect to the parking problem now experienced on Derwent Drive 

 

Planning Assessment 
 
13. The main issues are design, environmental and highway issues. 
 
14. The design and layout of the proposal is attractive and considered to be acceptable. There 

was a concern that the rear gardens in particular would be overshadowed by the flats to the 
south but technical evidence in the form of a shadow analysis supplied with the application 
indicates that shadows would only be cast over the entire gardens at midday in December, 
with dates in March June and September showing relatively little impact in terms of 
shadowing. This is considered to be acceptable. 

 
15. The application is accompanied by a noise assessment to address the proximity of the 

railway to the rear. This concludes in Chapter 9 that the bungalows should be constructed in 
brick with a 100mm sound absorbing layer above the ceilings and an acoustic fence be 
erected to the rear boundary. Environmental Protection Officers suggest this fence should 
wrap around the sides of the plots to the rear corner of each bungalow. A revised boundary 
treatment plan has been submitted showing the acoustic fence as requested by the 
Environmental Protection Officer. There are existing properties a similar distance from the 
railway on both sides. 

 
16. In terms of highway issues, local residents and the Town Council have objected on the 

grounds of loss of parking on the site. However, Spire Homes have provided evidence that 
only 10 of the 13 garages are occupied at present with only 5 tenants living within 100m of 
the site. One tenant who lives on Brooke Road also has a garage attached to their house. 
Spire has 2 other garage blocks at the southern end of Derwent Drive, just over 100m away, 
where there are 11 voids (in addition to 5 on West Road) which would be offered to current 
tenants on the application site in line with their existing policy. On this basis it is considered 
that it would be difficult to justify refusal on the grounds of loss of parking. The highway 
authority, whist having initial concerns about loss of garages, now has no objection based on 
the alternative provision. 

 
17. With regard to the condition required by the Environment Agency, there is no indication that 

the site suffers from any kind of contamination so the condition is not considered necessary 
in this case. An informative note to the applicant would be more appropriate. 

35
37



Project:

Sheet title:

Ref:

Scale:

Date:

Checked:Drawn:

Revision: Date:

· ·
130 New Walk

A development at Derwent Drive, Oakham

Spire Homes Ltd

40284

All dimensions to be checked on site. This drawing is the
copyright of the Architect, and not to be reproduced
without their permission. Ordnance Survey map information
reproduced with permission of HMSO Crown Copyright reserved.
rg+p Ltd. Trading as rg+p

Architects Project Managers Quantity Surveyors

Leicester, LE1 7JA
Tel: 0116 204 5800, Fax: 0116 204 5801

email: design@rg-p.co.uk, www.rg-p.co.uk

Client:

pgr

1:500 @ A4

Site Layout

002A

El Sub
Sta

1

2

1

1

2

2

Storage units
retained

El Sub
Sta

112

88
to 110

67

114

55

Ordnance Survey (c) Crown Copyright 2014. All rights reserved. Licence number 100022432

Acoustic fencing to
eastern boundary

N

Schedule of Accommodation

2 No.  2b3p Bungalow 57m2

200% Parking

Developable Area - 0.04 Hectares
Development Density - 50 Dwellings/ Hectare

0 10 20 30 40 50

Oct 2014

CW RW

A cw  Drawing name changed to    04/02/2015
          Site Layout.  Layout amended
          to topo and finalised plot design.
          Note added re acoustic fencing.

36

38

rpedley_15
Typewritten Text

rpedley_16
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX I



Project:

Client:

Sheet title:

Ref:

Scale:

Date:

Checked:Drawn:

Revision: Date:

· ·
130 New Walk

A development at Derwent Drive, Oakham

Spire Homes Ltd

40284

All dimensions to be checked on site. This drawing is the
copyright of the Architect, and not to be reproduced
without their permission. Ordnance Survey map information
reproduced with permission of HMSO Crown Copyright reserved.
rg+p Ltd. Trading as rg+p

Architects Project Managers Quantity Surveyors

Leicester, LE1 7JA
Tel: 0116 204 5800, Fax: 0116 204 5801

email: design@rg-p.co.uk, www.rg-p.co.uk

pgr

1:100 @ A3

Plots 1-2

003

0 1 2 3 4 5

9.
67

13.83

Bedroom 2

Bedroom 1

Kitchen

HOME OFFICE

Living

Shower
Room

Hall

AC

Ground Floor

Bedroom 2

Bedroom 1

Kitchen

HOME OFFICE

Living

Hall

st
or

e

Shower
Room

AC

st
or

e

obscure
glazing

obscure
glazing

2.
48

5.
69

Front Elevation

Side Elevation obscure glazing to door and window

Rear Elevation

Side Elevation

Jan 2015

CW

37

39

rpedley_17
Typewritten Text
             APPENDIX II



T
his page is intentionally left blank



REPORT NO: 102/2015 
 

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL &  
LICENSING COMMITTEE 

 
16th June 2015 

 

APPEALS 
 

Report of the Director for Places (Environment, Planning and Transport) 
 

STRATEGIC AIM: Ensuring the impact of development is managed 

 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 

1.1 This report lists for Members’ information the appeals received since the last 
meeting of the Development Control & Licensing Committee and summarises 
the decisions made. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATION 
 

2.1 That the contents of this report be noted. 
 
3. APPEALS LODGED SINCE LAST MEETING 
 

3.1 APP/A2470/D/14/3006243 – Mrs Claire Ashton-Johnson – 2014/1085/FUL 
Pear Tree Cottage, 7 Church Street, Wing, Oakham, Rutland, LE15 8RS 
Extension above existing garage 

 
 3.2 APP/A2470/W/15/3006457 – Mr & Mrs C Morton – 2014/0976/FUL 
  2 Ashwell Hall Stables, Oakham Road, Ashwell, Oakham, Rutland, LE15 7LH 

Retrospective consent for balcony extension to listed building 
 
 3.3 APP/A2470/Y/15/3006456 – Mr & Mrs C Morton – 2014/0977/LBA 
  2 Ashwell Hall Stables, Oakham Road, Ashwell, Oakham, Rutland, LE15 7LH 

Retrospective consent for balcony extension to listed building 
   
4. DECISIONS 
 

4.1 APP/TPO/A2470/4139 – Mrs R Dalby – 2014/0098/PTA 
Windmill House, 22 Stockerston Road, Uppingham, Oakham Rutland 
LE15 9UD 
Fell 1 No. Yew tree 
Delegated Decision 
Appeal Allowed – 17 April 2015 
 

4.2 APP/A2470/A/14/2227672 – Larkfleet Homes – 2013/1042/FUL 
  Land to the rear of North Brook Close, GREETHAM, Rutland, LE15 7SD 

Construction of 19 residential dwellings, including garages and associated   
infrastructure. 
Committee Decision  
Appeal Allowed & Award of Costs – Refused - 19/05/2015 

38
41

Agenda Item 5



4.3 APP/A2470/A/14/2222210 – Hanover Developments Ltd – 2013/0956/OUT 
Greetham Garden Centre, Oakham Road, GREETHAM, Rutland, LE15 7NN 
Outline Planning application for the redevelopment of the former Greetham 
Garden Centre for residential development for up to 35 dwellings and the 
provision of access. 
Committee Decision  
Appeal Allowed & Award of Costs – Allowed - 26/05/2015 
 

4.4 APP/A2470/W/15/3002295 - Imprezaco Limited – APP/2013/0221 
 Former Rose of England Hotel, Old Great North Road, Little Casterton, 

Stamford, Rutland, PE9 4DE 
 Erection of 15 Employment units (Use Classes B1, B2 and B8) 
 Committee Decision 
 Appeal Allowed & Award of Costs – Allowed - 28/05/2015 

 
5. APPEAL AGAINST ENFORCEMENTS LODGED SINCE LAST MEETING 
 

5.1 None 
 
6. ENFORCEMENT DECISIONS  
 

6.1 None 
 

 
Background Papers Report Author 
As quoted Mr G Pullan 

 
 Tel No: (01572) 722577 
 e-mail: enquiries@rutland.gov.uk
 
 
        
 

39
42


	Agenda
	1 Report No. 100 - 2015 Enforcement Report - Home Farm, 3 Water Lane, Ashwell, Rutland
	2 Report No. 104 - 2015 Enforcement Report - Stoup Cottage, 11 Ashwell Road, Whissendine, Rutland
	3 Report No. 103 - 2015 Application 2014/0962/FUL - Use of land as a residential caravan site Ranksborough Hall, Ranksborough Drive, Langham
	4 Report No. 101 - 2015 Planning Applications
	5 Report No. 102 - 2015 Appeals



